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(including default judgments)



1st Circuit affirms denial of relief from for​feiture judgment under Rule 60(b). (450) The 1st Circuit re​jected claimant's argument that he was improperly de​nied post-judgment relief un​der Fed. R. Civ. P. 60(b)(3) and (6) based on the govern​ment's "fraud on the court" and its mis​statements, and under Rule 60(b)(1), based upon his counsel's excusable neglect. Claimant did not establish a fraud upon the court. Claim​ant failed to show that the government's mis​statements or his coun​sel's failure to file a verified affidavit in opposi​tion to the govern​ment's motion for sum​mary judgment was material to the gov​ernment's demonstration of probable cause or to claimant's de​ficient defense of in​nocent owner​ship. U.S. v. Parcel of Land and Resi​dence at 18 Oakwood Street, 958 F.2d 1 (1st Cir. 1992).xe "U.S. v. Parcel of Land and Resi​dence at 18 Oakwood Street, 958 F.2d 1 (1st Cir. 1992)."
1st Circuit upholds denial of relief from forfei​ture under Fed. R. Civ. P. 60(b). (450) The gov​ernment's motion for summary judg​ment in a forfeiture case was granted after claimant failed to op​pose the motion. After fi​nal judgment was entered, claimant filed a motion for relief from judgment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 60(b)(6). The 1st Cir​cuit affirmed the denial of the mo​tion, since claimant did not have a potentially meritori​ous defense. Claim​ant did not deny the facts set forth in a DEA agent's affidavit, which es​tablished that claimant's officers and employees used the property to distribute cocaine. The court also rejected claimant's argument for application of Rule 60(b)(6) based on the gross neglect of its former coun​sel. Senior Circuit Judge Aldrich dissented, arguing that claimant came "very close" to having a potentially meritori​ous de​fense, since all non-operating club members of claimant were appar​ently unaware of the offi​cers' miscon​duct. U.S. v. Parcel of Land with Building, Appurte​nances and Improvements, Known as Woburn City Athletic Club, 928 F.2d 1 (1st Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. Parcel of Land with Building, Appurte​nances and Improvements, Known as Woburn City Athletic Club, 928 F.2d 1 (1st Cir. 1991)."
1st Circuit declines to determine jurisdic​tional question since government would pre​vail on the merits. (450) After final judgment in a forfeiture action was entered in favor of the government, eviction proceedings were com​menc​ed and an auction of the property was sched​uled. Claimant's motion for relief from judgment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 60(b)(6) was denied, and claimant ap​pealed. The govern​ment argued that the appellate court lacked ju​risdiction because the district court's jurisdic​tion was dependent upon its control of the property. Claimant contended that the district court re​tained jurisdic​tion over the property while it remained in the custody of the United States Marshall. The 1st Circuit found that it need not "hack its way through this juris​dictional bramble bush," since the case could be resolved on the mer​its in favor of the gov​ernment. U.S. v. Parcel of Land with Building, Appurte​nances and Improvements, Known as Woburn City Athletic Club, 928 F.2d 1 (1st Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. Parcel of Land with Building, Appurte​nances and Improvements, Known as Woburn City Athletic Club, 928 F.2d 1 (1st Cir. 1991)."
1st Circuit holds mortgagee has an interest in for​feitable prop​erty and may file late claim if circum​stances warrant. (450) A defendant who purchased property subject to a mortgage was convicted of drug offenses. Forfeiture proceed​ings were instituted. Since no one filed a claim, a decree of default was entered and the property was forfeited. The 1st Circuit held that it was error for the trial court to refuse to set aside the de​fault decree under Fed. R. Civ. P. 55(c), be​cause the mortgagee had shown good cause. Good cause existed because (1) the mort​gagee's default was not willful; it was based upon a good faith belief that he was not an "owner" according to the longtime practice of Puerto Ri​can mort​gage law; (2) the govern​ment failed to show preju​dice from the delay and (3) the mortgagee had a meritorious de​fense in that a lien holder is con​sidered an owner under the for​feiture statute. The default was vacated and the case remanded for consid​era​tion of the mortgagee's claim. U.S. v. One Urban Lot Located at 1 Street, A1, Puerto Rico, 865 F.2d 427 (1st Cir. 1989).xe "U.S. v. One Urban Lot Located at 1 Street, A1, Puerto Rico, 865 F.2d 427 (1st Cir. 1989)."
2nd Circuit reverses default judgment im​posed as sanc​tion in forfeiture case. (450) The 2nd Circuit reversed a default judgment im​posed by the district court as a sanction for a claimant's failure to timely respond to a set of government interrogatories. Although the dead​line for responding to the interrogatories had already been extended once by the dis​trict court, the 2nd Circuit found that the district court had "acted precipitously in using the ul​timate sanction of a de​fault judgment." There was no pattern of repeated discovery violations. One claimant was incarcerated, and the other intended to assert an innocent owner defense. The subject of the forfeiture was the claimants' home. Moreover, the gov​ernment's need for discovery was not "overwhelming" in light of the evidence it already had from its successful prose​cution of one of the claimants, and the "minimal burden it bears in forfeiture actions." U.S. v. Aldeco, 917 F.2d 689 (2d Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. Aldeco, 917 F.2d 689 (2d Cir. 1990)."
5th Circuit allows government to evict owner from residence following forfeiture. (450) A property owner sought injunctive relief to prevent the government from evicting her from her residence following the forfeiture of the residence. The Fifth Circuit approved the dismissal of the complaint since there was no substantial likelihood that the owner would have prevailed on the merits of the case. Due process requires the government to give notice and a meaningful opportunity to be heard before seizing real property subject to forfeiture. Here, the owner signed an occupancy agreement permitting her to remain at the property until the forfeiture matter was resolved. A jury found the property subject to forfeiture, and the district court entered a judgment and final order of forfeiture in July 1991. In August 1992, an appellate court affirmed the forfeiture. The Marshal's Service then notified the owner that she had 90 days to vacate the property. In light of this process, there was little likelihood that the owner would have prevailed on the merits. Rodriguez v. U.S., 66 F.3d 95 (5th Cir. 1995).xe "Rodriguez v. U.S., 66 F.3d 95 (5th Cir. 1995)."
5th Circuit affirms that claimant had no​tice of judicial default in forfeiture case. (450) In a forfeiture action brought against a truck, the 5th Circuit affirmed the district court's denial of claimant's motion to set aside a default judgment. The vehicle was seized in August 1990 when claimant drove it across the border from Mexico. In Novem​ber, 1990, claimant aided by his attorney, filed a bond and claim with Customs, and both were notified that judicial forfeiture pro​ceedings would be filed. In February, 1990 these proceed​ings were instituted, and notice was published. An Assis​tant U.S. Attorney called claimant's attorney at least twice prior to April 4, and left messages con​cerning the vehicle. On April 4, the As​sistant U.S. Attor​ney wrote a letter ad​vising that on April 8 he intended to file a motion for default. Claimant admits he received this letter on April 9. On April 10, the Assistant U.S. At​torney mailed to the attorney his motion for en​try for entry of default. On April 10, the at​torney called but the Assistant U.S. At​torney was unavailable. The determina​tion that de​fendant had adequate and timely notice of the forfeiture proceed​ings and failed to demon​strate good cause for not filing a claim sooner, was supported by the record. U.S. v. One 1988 Dodge Pickup, 959 F.2d 37 (5th Cir. 1992).xe "U.S. v. One 1988 Dodge Pickup, 959 F.2d 37 (5th Cir. 1992)."
6th Circuit says purchaser of property under land installment contract has standing. (450) The government sought civil forfeiture of a small country grocery store pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1955(d), because it was used for an illegal bookmaking operation. A default entered against claimant, who held registered equitable title to the property under an Ohio land installment contract, when he filed a timely claim to the property, but not a timely answer to the complaint. The district court denied claimant’s motion to set aside the default on the ground that he lacked standing to contest the forfeiture. The Sixth Circuit reversed. The legal owners of the store, the Bridwells, entered into a land installment contract with another couple, the Sadlers. The Sadlers later assigned their equitable title to claimant, who also assumed the Sadlers’ obligation to repay the underlying bank loan. Claimant ran the store for a few months, then orally assigned his interest in the store, first to a nephew, and then to his brother. While the brother was running the store, the bookmaking operation commenced and the forfeiture action resulted. The Sixth Circuit held claimant had standing, based on the fact that claimant continued to hold equitable title to the property and retained an obligation to pay the underlying loan. U.S. v. Real Property and All Furnishings Known as Bridwell’s Grocery and Video, 195 F.3d 819 (6th Cir. 1999).xe "U.S. v. Real Property and All Furnishings Known as Bridwell’s Grocery and Video, 195 F.3d 819 (6th Cir. 1999)."
7th Circuit rules that settlement agreement provision that defendant corporation was not entitled to prejudgment interest was not amended or modified by letter from AUSA. (450) In a civil forfeiture action related to a criminal drug-related money laundering prosecution, the government seized cash and property from Rand Motors. The forfeiture complaint alleged that Rand laundered money by purchasing automobiles with proceeds from illegal drug trafficking. More than five years later, the government entered into a settlement agreement with Rand, by which the government agreed to dismiss the prosecution, keep $250,000 of the seized property, and return the balance to Rand. The district court entered a dismissal order and retained jurisdiction over the case to enforce the terms of the settlement agreement. Three years later, Rand came back to court arguing that an AUSA had agreed by letter to pay interest on the balance due to Rand, notwithstanding the silence of the settlement agreement on this point. The district court denied Rand’s petition for interest, finding that the settlement agreement and dismissal order controlled, and neither provided for any interest. The Seventh Circuit affirmed, holding that the settlement agreement was unambiguous and the AUSA letter was not relevant as to whether the parties anticipated payment of interest at the time they entered into the settlement agreement. Thus, the letter from the AUSA did not amend or modify the settlement agreement. U.S. v. Rand Motors, 2002 WL 3133376 (7th Cir. 2002). 
7th Circuit says ineffective assistance will not excuse default as 6th Amendment does not cover forfeitures. (450) Thirteen years after a default judgment of forfeiture was entered against claimant’s property, he filed a motion for relief from judgment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 60(b). The district court dismissed the action as untimely under both Rules 60(b)(1) and 60(b)(6). The Seventh Circuit affirmed on the same ground, holding in addition that claimant lacked standing to contest the forfeiture because he never filed a claim to the property or an answer to the complaint. Moreover, his default could not be excused by the alleged ineffective performance of his attorney because “the Sixth Amendment right to effective assistance of counsel does not extend to forfeiture proceedings and, therefore, ineffective assistance cannot constitute good cause for the default.” U.S. v. $284,960.00 in United States Currency, 139 F.3d 902 (7th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished).xe "U.S. v. $284,960.00 in United States Currency, 139 F.3d 902 (7th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished)."
7th Circuit considers Good claim not raised until reply brief in motion to reconsider. (450) Claimants argued, for the first time in their reply brief in a motion to reconsider, that there should have been an adversary hearing before their property was seized. The Supreme Court did not decide U.S. v. James Daniel Good Real Property, 510 U.S. 43 (1993) until after they had filed their motion for reconsideration. The Seventh Circuit agreed that claimants did not waive the issue since they raised it at the first opportunity. The holding in Good was applicable as it was to all cases not final on the date of the decision. U.S. v. All Assets and Equipment of West Side Building Corp., 58 F.3d 1181 (7th Cir. 1995).xe "U.S. v. All Assets and Equipment of West Side Building Corp., 58 F.3d 1181 (7th Cir. 1995)."
7th Circuit holds attorney's negligence was not "good cause" for opening default judg​ment. (450) Claimant argued that the district court abused its discretion by denying his motion to vacate a default judgment entered against his indoor cultivation equipment. The Seventh Circuit found no "good cause" for the default. The 6th Amendment's guarantee of effective assistance does not extend to forfeiture proceed​ings because such proceedings are not "criminal prosecutions" and claimants are not "accused." Claimant's appropriate remedy was a suit against his attorney for malpractice. There was no due process violation. Defendant's attorney received notice of the pending default. Notice to a party's attorney constitutes notice to that party. U.S. v. Indoor Cultivation Equipment From High Tech Indoor Garden Supply, 55 F.3d 1311 (7th Cir. 1995).xe "U.S. v. Indoor Cultivation Equipment From High Tech Indoor Garden Supply, 55 F.3d 1311 (7th Cir. 1995)."
7th Circuit says attorney's negligence in forfeiture case does not entitle claimant to relitigate. (450) Claimants' property was forfeit​ed after their counsel failed to file a timely claim on their behalf, or appear at the hearing on the government's default motion. With new counsel, claimants then filed a motion under Fed. R. Civ. P. 60(b) for relief from judgment based on their former lawyer's gross negligence. The 7th Cir​cuit held that the lawyer's negligence did not entitle claimants to another opportunity to reliti​gate the forfeiture matter. It is well-established that an attorney's errors and misconduct are attributed to the client, even if the errors are negligent or the misconduct willful. The label "gross" does not make a difference to the underlying principle. U.S. v. 7108 West Grand Avenue, 15 F.3d 682 (7th Cir. 1994).xe "U.S. v. 7108 West Grand Avenue, 15 F.3d 682 (7th Cir. 1994)."
8th Circuit upholds default judgment where claimants' papers did not comply with rules. (450) At claimants' request, the time to file a verified claim and answer to the forfeiture complaint was extended until November 18, 1991. Claimants never filed the claim or answer. Instead, on July 30, 1992, one claimant filed a pro se "Claim for Said Property" on behalf of himself and other individuals. After this filing, claimants submitted a number of papers, none of which complied with Rule C(6). The 8th Circuit upheld a default judgment entered against the property on March 3, 1993. The purported claims were not filed with court permission for an out-of-time filing. The submissions also only made a general attempt to state the nature of the interest being asserted by claimants. It is not an abuse of discretion for the district court to require strict compliance with Rule C(6). U.S. v. One Hundred Four Thousand Six Hundred Seventy-Four Dollars ($104,674.00), 17 F.3d 267 (8th Cir. 1994).xe "U.S. v. One Hundred Four Thousand Six Hundred Seventy-Four Dollars ($104,674.00), 17 F.3d 267 (8th Cir. 1994)."
8th Circuit refuses to open default forfei​ture judgment where claimant failed to show meri​tor​ious defense. (450) Defendant challeng​ed a default forfeiture judgment against his property, claiming his counsel had collaborated with the government by allowing the property to be forfeited. The 8th Circuit upheld the district court's refusal to set aside the default, agreeing that even if claimant's allegations were true, he had failed to show any basis upon which he could succeed if the default judgment was vacated. The govern​ment alleged that claimant purchased the property with a down payment of $18,000, using four cashier's checks and four money orders from five different banks. Claimant extensively remodeled the property. Claimant's business was merely a front, and his tax returns showed income woefully inad​equate to support the remodeling. Claimant did not deny these allegations and failed to produce any evidence that the money to pur​chase and improve the property came from legal sources. U.S. v. Premises Known as 15145 50th Street South, 5 F.3d 1137 (8th Cir. 1993). xe "U.S. v. Premises Known as 15145 50th Street South, 5 F.3d 1137 (8th Cir. 1993). "
8th Circuit upholds default judgment where claimant failed to sat​isfy Supple​mental Rule C(6). (450) Claimant filed a timely claim but did not file an an​swer until well after the deadline established in Rule C(6) of the Supplemental Rules for Certain Ad​miralty and Maritime Claims. The 8th Cir​cuit af​firmed the district court's refusal to consider the claim as sufficient, by itself, to satisfy Rule C(6). Strict com​pliance with the Rule requires both a claim and an answer. There was no error in denying leave to file a late answer, since claimant did not show ex​cusable neglect. Claimant was a licensed at​torney and was not ignorant of the procedural re​quirements. More​over, at least three doc​uments out​lined the require​ments of Rule C(6). Claimant also offered no good reason why the district court should have granted him additional time to respond to the gov​ernment's motion to strike the claim. The fact that the motion was inadvertently filed directly with the judge rather than through the clerk's office made no practical dif​ference to claimant. U.S. v. Ford 250 Pickup 1990, 980 F.2d 1242 (8th Cir. 1992).xe "U.S. v. Ford 250 Pickup 1990, 980 F.2d 1242 (8th Cir. 1992)."
9th Circuit rules government must return improperly seized funds plus interest actually earned. (450) A prevailing claimant in the government’s civil in rem action to forfeit currency and computer equipment based on suspected violations of the Bank Secrecy Act, 31 U.S.C. §§5313(a) and 5324, sought return of the cash plus interest. He contended that, pursuant to U.S. v. $277,000 U.S. Currency, 69 F.3d 1491 (9th Cir. 1995), he was entitled to interest at the government’s “alternative borrowing rate.” The Ninth Circuit disagreed, finding that where forfeited funds are deposited in an interest-bearing account the government satisfies its obligation to disgorge any benefit accruing from the improper forfeiture if it repays the forfeited funds plus the actual interest accrued during the government’s possession of the money. U.S. v. $133,735.30 Seized from U.S. Bancorp Brokerage Account No. 32130630, 139 F.3d 729 (9th Cir. 1998).xe "U.S. v. $133,735.30 Seized from U.S. Bancorp Brokerage Account No. 32130630, 139 F.3d 729 (9th Cir. 1998)."
9th Circuit says invalidating criminal convictions did not void later civil forfeiture. (450) Claimants were convicted of structuring financial transactions to avoid reporting require​ments, in violation of 31 U.S.C. §5324(3). Thereafter, the government civilly forfeited their house and car. Claimants’ convictions were invalidated by the decision in Ratzlaff v. U.S., 510 U.S. 135 (1994). The Ninth Circuit nonethe​less declined to void the civil judgment of forfeiture. “[A] change in the law after a judgment has become final does not compel reopening a final judgment under Rule 60(b)(6).” No extraordinary circumstances existed meriting such relief. Duran v. U.S., 139 F.3d 904 (9th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished).xe "Duran v. U.S., 139 F.3d 904 (9th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished)."
9th Circuit rejects effort by property owner to set aside default judgment. (450) Claimant was convicted of drug crimes in connection with sales of crack cocaine at a motel of which he was the record owner. The government brought a civil forfeiture action against the motel, which claimant initially decided not to contest. Declaratory judgment was entered by a U.S. magistrate judge against claimant’s interest in the property. Thereafter, claimant decided to make a claim, arguing that he had never received proper notice and that the magistrate lacked jurisdiction to enter any order because he, as owner of the property, had never consented to the magistrate’s jurisdiction. The Ninth Circuit held that adequate notice had been provided by certified mail to the jail where claimant was held and by mail to his criminal defense lawyer. Since proper notice was given and claimant did not comply with applicable requirements for filing a claim, he lacked standing and therefore his consent to the magistrate’s jurisdiction was not required. U.S. v. Real Property located in Fresno County, 135 F.3d 1312 (9th Cir. 1998).xe "U.S. v. Real Property located in Fresno County, 135 F.3d 1312 (9th Cir. 1998)."
11th Circuit holds bond posted by claimant to suspend for​feiture proceeding is cost bond. (450) Eight months after succeeding in its forfeiture action, the government filed a motion seeking the release of claimant's cost bond. The dis​trict court awarded the government the entire sum of the bond on the theory that it was a penal bond subject to for​feiture if the property was for​feited. The 11th Circuit re​versed, finding that the bond was a cost bond, not a penal bond. Although the statute de​scribes the face amount of the bond as a "penal bond," the statute clearly places only the costs of the pro​ceeding at risk. To adopt the gov​ernment's view would "sanction the imposition of a penalty on any per​son who sim​ply seeks to challenge a forfeiture proceeding." The claimant would suffer two penalties, the for​feiture of the prop​erty itself and the bond, "solely for taking a view con​trary to the one which was ultimately successful." The gov​ernment had waived its right to tax costs in view of the lapse of time and the fact that the final judgment had stated that no costs would be taxed. Real Property and Residence Lo​cated at Route 1, Box 111, Firetower Road, Semmes, Mo​bile County, Alabama, 920 F.2d 788 (11th Cir. 1991xe "Real Property and Residence Lo​cated at Route 1, Box 111, Firetower Road, Semmes, Mo​bile County, Alabama, 920 F.2d 788 (11th Cir. 1991).").

California district court refuses to vacate default judgment of forfeiture of currency because claimant had access to the legal advice and services of two separate lawyers and failed to establish he had a meritorious defense, even though there would be no prejudice to the government. (450) The DEA was undergoing an investigation of an individual believed to be a major trafficker in controlled substances. After a traffic stop, the police searched the claimant's vehicle and discovered $32,000 in the trunk. When questioned by police as to the origins of the money, the claimant asserted that he obtained the funds from his real estate management company; however, the police determined that the articles of incorporation for the company had expired two years earlier, and he did not file tax returns for the past five years. The government thus filed an indictment against him for knowingly making a false statement that the $32,000 in the trunk of his vehicle was from his company. Prior to this, on August 12, 2005, the DEA issued a notice of forfeiture for the $32,000. The government also filed a forfeiture action and served notice, but the claimant did not file a responsive pleading. The government moved for default judgment, but it was two months after the entry of default and four months after the filing of the complaint that the claimants made any response, filing a motion to stay the forfeiture proceedings pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §981(g)(2). The court noted that the Ninth Circuit has held that default judgments are appropriate only in extreme circumstances and that a case should, whenever possible, be decided on the merits. Claimant asserted that (1) his conduct was not culpable, (2) he has a meritorious defense, and (3) the vacation of the entry of default would pose no prejudice to plaintiff. There, the claimant's actions—consisting of a failure to meet any of the filing deadlines—were intentional and culpable; he did not assert that he did not have notice of the filing of the action, the entry of default, the motion for default or the amended motion for default. He was still in the country at the time of the plaintiff's motion for default. Moreover, he passed on all the information that he received to at least one of his lawyers, yet he provided no explanation for his failure to seek an extension of time immediately or to file a response. A full month passed before the current motion to stay the action was filed. Additionally, the claimant was not without legal experience; he had already filed a claim in response to the notice of seizure filed by the DEA and was thus familiar with the legal process, and had access to the legal advice and services of two separate lawyers. The claimant also asserted that he can demonstrate that the $32,000 was not derived from narcotics trafficking but working capital for his business; however, he offered no actual facts in support of his assertion, arguing that he is unable to fully disclose the factual details of this defense without waiving his Fifth Amendment privilege. Although the burden of establishing a meritorious defense is not a high one, the court found the claimant offered mere denials without a shred of factual support. Finally, although there was no indication that the government would not be prejudiced by vacating the entry of default and adjudicating the case on its merits, two of the factors that courts are directed to consider in a Rule 60(b) determination supported a finding that the claimant's actions did not constitute excusable neglect and good cause to set aside the entry of default. U.S. v. $32,000 in U.S. Currency, 2006 WL 1883274 (N.D. Cal. 2006) (July 7, 2006).

California District Court grants default judgment against real estate. (450) The government sought a default judgment against a check representing the value of a drug defendant’s interest in real property used to grow marijuana. The defendant pled guilty and agreed to the forfeiture. The court’s order granting the default judgment is interesting primarily as a thorough recitation of the steps necessary to obtain a valid default judgment. U.S. v. $70,000 in U.S. Currency, WL 574373 (N.D. Cal. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. $70,000 in U.S. Currency, WL 574373 (N.D. Cal. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
Illinois District Court grants default judgment forfeiting vehicle where leasing company failed to respond to civil forfeiture action. (450) The DEA instituted administrative forfeiture proceedings against a 2002 Cadillac Escalade. After DEA provided proper notice to the leasing company, the company filed a verified claim and petition for remission. A civil forfeiture action was then filed, and service was properly effected through certified first-class mail. The leasing company did not file a verified statement or an answer and did not request to receive any extension of time to file those pleadings, as required by Supplemental Rule C(6). The government moved for a default judgment against the leasing company’s interest in the vehicle. The Northern District of Illinois district court granted the motion. U.S. v. Cadillac One 2002 Escalade, 2003 WL 22220264 (N.D. Ill., Sept. 25, 2003). 

Iowa district court enters default judgment of forfeiture of real property where owner’s attorney was given numerous opportunities to file proper verified claim, because owner cannot avoid consequences of the acts or omissions of attorney she voluntarily chose as her representative. (365, 450) The government filed a forfeiture complaint against real property, recorded a Notice of Lis Pendens, posted the complaint on the property, and sent a letter to the claimant’s counsel in the underlying criminal case stating that the claimant was personally served with the Complaint, that over 30 days had elapsed since he was served, and he had not filed a verified claim in response to the Complaint. The letter extended the time to file a claim to avoid a default judgment. Counsel responded by stating that he would do so, but merely needed to obtain the claimant’s signature on the claim. Government counsel further extended the time to file a proper claim and answer. However, by that date counsel filed only an answer to the Complaint, admitting that the Defendant property is properly identified, but denying that the property is subject to forfeiture. The document was not signed by the claimant. Government counsel attempted to contact claimant’s counsel by telephone, but received no return phone call. A month later he e-mailed and mailed counsel again, and informed him that a proper claim and answer had not been filed in the case, specifically that no “Verified Claim” had been filed as required by the Supplemental Rules for Admiralty or Maritime Claims and Asset Forfeiture Actions. Government counsel once again extended the time to file the corrected documents. Instead, claimant’s counsel filed the identical answer previously filed, which again was not signed by the claimant. The government thus moved for a default judgment. In response, counsel filed a “Statement of Claim” and an “Amended Answer” to the Complaint, both of which contained signatures, and an opposition to the motion, claiming “inadvertence.” Supplemental Rule G(5)(b) provides that a “claimant must serve and file an answer to the complaint or a motion under Rule 12 within 20 days after filing the claim.” Moreover, a person asserting an interest in certain property must file a verified statement of right or interest, and courts may require claimants in forfeiture proceedings to comply strictly with the filing provisions when presenting their claims to the court. 

 HYPERLINK http://web2.westlaw.com/KCNotes/default.wl?sv=Split&serialnum=2012714514&vr=2.0&fcl=False&rlti=1&locatestring=HD(001)%2cCL(H%2cO)%2cDC(A%2cL%2cO%2cD%2cG)%2cDT(E%2cD%2cC%2cM)&rs=WLW7.07&eq=Welcome%2fLawSchool&n=34&db=ALLFEDS&fn=_top&rlt=CLID_QRYRLT29321368&rp=
The United States Supreme Court has articulated four factors to be considered in determining whether a stated reason for failing to comply with a procedural deadline constitutes “excusable neglect”: the danger of prejudice to the opposing party, the length of the delay and its potential impact on judicial proceedings, the reason for the delay, including whether it was within the reasonable control of the movant, and whether the movant acted in good faith. Excusable neglect does not include ignorance or carelessness on the part of an attorney, nor does excusable neglect encompass the failure to follow the clear dictates of a court rule. The court first found that entry of a default judgment would be substantially prejudicial to the claimant, as she would forever lose her opportunity to contest the forfeiture of the subject property. Second, the length of the delay and its potential impact on judicial proceedings weighed against the claimant because of all of the opportunities given to her counsel to comply with the statute. Third, the only explanation given was counsel's statement that he inadvertently neglected to update the dates on various filings. No mention was made as to why a proper claim was never filed, nor any mention made as to why counsel repeatedly filed unsigned documents. Essentially, no explanation whatsoever was given that could constitute a justification for the utter failure to follow the procedural rules in this matter, despite counsel having been told on more than one occasion of the applicable Supplemental Rule and its requirements, and having been provided numerous opportunities to correct the matter. Finally, excusable neglect at its core requires a showing of good faith and a reasonable basis for the failure to comply with the rules. Neither was demonstrated, and counsel’s acts amounted to nothing more than “garden-variety attorney inattention” and not excusable neglect. While the entry of default judgment is not favored by the law and should be a “rare judicial act,” the facts in the present case warranted entry of default judgment. While counsel appeared to hold the brunt of responsibility for the failure of the claim, the Supreme Court has held that clients must be held accountable for the acts and omissions of their attorneys. The claimant voluntarily chose this attorney as her representative in the action, and she cannot now avoid the consequences of the acts or omissions of this freely selected agent. Each party is deemed bound by the acts of her lawyer-agent and is considered to have notice of all facts, notice of which can be charged upon the attorney. U.S. v. 20660 Lee Road, CA, 2007 WL 2033996 (S.D. Iowa 2007) (July 17, 2007).

Louisiana District Court strictly construes rules and refuses to set aside default judg​ment. (450) Claimant was arrested in possession of $21,044 in cash he intended to use to purchase cocaine from an undercover agent. The govern​ment filed a civil forfeiture action against the money pursuant to 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(6) and served claimant with proper notice. Claimant filed a claim to the money within ten days of service as required by Rule C of the Supple​mental Rules for Certain Admiralty and Maritime Claims, but failed to file an answer within twenty days thereafter as required by the rule. The district court entered a default judgment, and in this opinion declined to set that judgment aside. In U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Property, 763 F.2d 181, 183 (5th Cir. 1985), the Fifth Circuit established a three-part test for determining when a default should be set aside. A court “should consider [1] whether the default was willful, [2] whether setting it aside would prejudice the adversary, and [3] whether a meritorious defense is present.” The district court concluded that claimant’s failure to file an answer here was “willful” because his filing of a timely claim “indicates that [claimant] understood the procedural requirements outlined in the notice.” The court did not address the other two prongs of the test. U.S. v. $21,044.00 U.S. Currency, 1998 WL 213762 (E.D. Louisiana 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. $21,044.00 U.S. Currency, 1998 WL 213762 (E.D. Louisiana 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
New York district court grants summary judgment in favor of claimants because forged historical documents were not used to facilitate the alleged criminal violation; however, the court orders that documents will be released only after government places a visible mark on the back of each document indicating that they were forgeries. (190, 390, 450) The government commenced a forfeiture action against approximately 250 forged documents purporting to be the writings of John F. Kennedy and other prominent historical figures, alleged to have been used in a mail and wire fraud scheme to sell forged documents. The government also sought a judicial declaration that the documents may be destroyed to prevent the documents from reentering the marketplace where other innocent unsuspecting purchasers, like the victim-claimants there, could be deceived into believing the documents are authentic and highly valuable as such. Approximately 50 claimants originally contested forfeiture, and in an effort to resolve the matter, the government offered to return the documents to all claimants provided they are stamped, in a prominent manner across the text thereof, that they are forgeries; all claimants, with the exception of John and Deborah Lee Sabolich, were willing to accept the Government's proposed compromise. The Saboliches instead moved for summary judgment dismissing the complaint and ordering the government to return the 11 documents they purchased for over $800,000 as an investment, contending the documents do not constitute “proceeds” subject to forfeiture and that they were innocent owners. The government produced copies of the Saboliches' documents with exhibit stickers, on their face, indicating they were introduced into evidence at trial of the criminal defendant, Cusack. At Cusack's sentencing, the trial judge observed that “[t]he evidence at trial conclusively demonstrated that all of the Cusack documents are indeed forgeries and were authored by Cusack.” In the forfeiture case, the government contended that the documents were the proceeds of Cusack's mail and wire fraud because he obtained them as a result of his fraudulent misrepresentations regarding the documents' origin and content. The court held, however, that Cusack's false representations as to the authenticity of the writings were not used to “obtain” the documents. Rather, his fraudulent misrepresentations allowed him to obtain approximately $7 million from the sale of the documents which he thereafter used to finance a lavish lifestyle. It was those monies he obtained, and any substituted assets traceable thereto (such as: homes, cars and designer clothing), that constituted the proceeds of his mail and wire fraud activities. The documents instead were the instrumentality or means that enabled Cusack to commit the crimes, from which he reaped his ill-gotten gains, i.e., the subject matter of that fraud. On the other hand, 18 U.S.C. §981(a) (1)(A), upon which the government's second cause of action for forfeiture was premised, provides that the property must simply be “involved in” a transaction in violation of specified money laundering statutes, which includes property used to facilitate a money laundering offense. The government thus claimed that the documents were involved in a violation of 18 U.S.C. §1957. The court found, however, that the complaint was bereft of any factual allegations to support a claim that the documents themselves were used to facilitate a money laundering transaction. The documents were not property that were themselves being laundered nor were they otherwise involved in, derived from, or used to facilitate a money laundering offense. The court thus held that the claimants were legally entitled to regain possession of their documents. However, it added that the laws do not affirmatively afford the claimants the absolute right to obtain their property in its original criminally-tainted condition. That legally protected possessory right is limited to the documents' true character and intrinsic worth. Even as innocent owners, they would have the responsibility to prevent any further illegal use of the documents. Thus, the court held that visibly marking the back of each of the documents to indicate that the government has concluded that they are forgeries will negate any artificially inflated value, will not alter their textual content and will best safeguard their aesthetic appearance. U.S. v. Approximately 250 Documents Containing the Forged Hand Writing of President John F. Kennedy and Others, 2008 WL 4129814 (S.D.N.Y.) (September 5, 2008).
Oregon District Court refuses to extend time or relieve claimant from default judgment. (450) The government filed a complaint in rem seeking forfeiture of a car allegedly used in laundering the proceeds of a bank robbery, and allegedly purchased with drug money. The government served claimant with a copy of the complaint, warrant of arrest in rem, and other documents by mailing them to the prison where he was housed. Claimant does not deny having received them on or about May 10, 1999. The ten days allowed for filing a claim passed without action by claimant, and on June 29, 1999, the court entered a default judgment. On July 6, 1999, claimant filed a motion for extension of time to file claim. The court denied the motion, finding that the government had complied with all required procedural steps and that claimant presented no cognizable excuse for his failure to act in a timely fashion. U.S. v. 1989 Cadillac Fleetwood, 1999 WL 732421 (D. Oregon 1999) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. 1989 Cadillac Fleetwood, 1999 WL 732421 (D. Oregon 1999) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
Pennsylvania district court voids default judgment of forfeiture because incarcerated claimant did not receive actual notice, and notice served on criminal attorney not retained for civil forfeiture matter was insufficient. (450) The Government indicted Marcel and 12 others with drug trafficking, with a forfeiture count concerning real property in Sunrise, Florida, of which Marcel was the owner of record. Pending the case, the property was sold and the proceeds were deposited into an escrow account. The government later filed a civil complaint for forfeiture and warrant of arrest in rem against the money in the escrow account, and personally served Marcel’s wife Ana with the complaint. Responding to the warrant of arrest, Marcel’s criminal attorney Rosen remitted the $57,537.70 in the escrow account to the Department of Justice, however, no statement of interest was filed, and the government filed a request for entry of default. At Marcel’s sentencing six days later, the court dismissed the remaining counts in the indictment, including the forfeiture count. The Court then issued a final civil order of forfeiture with respect to the $57,537.70. Nine months later, Marcel filed a motion for return of property, arguing that the Government failed to provide him with adequate notice of the forfeiture action and that the Court dismissed the forfeiture counts. Marcel alleged that he first learned of the forfeiture during a telephone conversation with his wife well after the Court had issued the final order of forfeiture, and that during a jailhouse visit from one of his attorneys in the criminal proceedings, they discussed his signing a release of the money. In its opposition, the government asserted that Marcel also was served through his attorney of record, who agreed to accept service, and that Marcel's own motion revealed that he knew of the forfeiture action. The court first held that at a minimum, due process requires that when a potential claimant is in the government's custody and detained at a place of its choosing, notice of a pending forfeiture proceeding, administrative or judicial, must be mailed to the detainee at his or her place of confinement. Fed.R.Civ.P. Supp. R. G(4)(b)(iii)(c) also specifically and unconditionally provides that notice sent to a potential claimant who is incarcerated must be sent to the place of incarceration. Here, the Government made no attempt to mail notice of the forfeiture proceeding to Marcel or any other place of confinement. Moreover, the government offered no authority to support its argument that Marcel was served through his attorney of record or, more generally, that an apparent brief discussion of the civil forfeiture proceeding between Marcel and his attorney of record in the separate and distinct criminal proceeding constitutes adequate notice. Nor could it, for the Third Circuit Court of Appeals has held that service on an attorney who represented a claimant in a criminal proceeding could not constitute actual notice for purposes of a civil forfeiture proceeding, since the claimant, prior to notice, would not have been a party to forfeiture proceeding and, accordingly, could not have retained counsel therefor. Thus, because the government failed to provide constitutionally adequate notice of the forfeiture proceedings to Marcel, the Court declared the final order of forfeiture issued in those proceedings void pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 60(b) (4). U.S. v. Marcel, 2008 WL 5047768 (M.D.Pa. 2008) (November 24, 2008).

Virgin Islands District Court says criminal judgment can be enforced under Federal Debt Collection Act without separate civil judg​ment. (450) In a restitution case that might be argued to have some application in the forfeiture area, the owner of a vessel subject to a lien resulting from a criminal restitution order contended that the U.S. could not execute the criminal judgment without the court first having conducted a separate civil action to determine the precise amount of restitution owed. The Federal Debt Collection Procedures Act, 28 U.S.C. §3001, et seq., provides “the exclusive civil procedures for the United States . . . to recover a judgment on a debt.” The Act is equally applicable to debts arising from criminal and civil actions. It does not require that a civil judgment must follow a criminal judgment in order for a writ of execution to issue. U.S. v. West Indies Transport Co., Inc., 35 F.Supp.2d 450 (D.C. Virgin Islands 1998).

